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REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NUMBER  208-4715
June 24, 2009

	COUNTY  OF  FRESNOone (1)

	ADDENDUM NUMBER: one (1)

	208-4715
	RFP NUMBER:  208-4715
	

	RADIO FREQUENCY IDENTIFICATION (RFID)
SOFTWARE, HARDWARE AND TAGS

	June 24, 2009

	Radio Frequency Identification (RFID) Software, Hardware and Tags
	PURCHASING USE
	

	
	saw
	G:\PUBLIC\RFP\208-4715 ADD 1.DOC

	IMPORTANT:  SUBMIT PROPOSAL IN SEALED PACKAGE WITH PROPOSAL NUMBER, CLOSING DATE AND BUYER’S NAME MARKED CLEARLY ON THE OUTSIDE TO:

	COUNTY OF FRESNO, Purchasing

4525 EAST HAMILTON AVENUE

FRESNO, CA  93702-4599

	Closing date of proposal will be at 2:00 p.m., on July 17, 2009

 ref date  \* MERGEFORMAT July 17, 2009.
PROPOSALS WILL BE CONSIDERED LATE WHEN THE OFFICIAL PURCHASING TIME CLOCK READS 2:00 P.M.

	Proposals will be opened and publicly read at that time.  All proposal information will be available for review after contract award.

	Clarification of specifications are to be directed to:  Patricia Flaherty or Gary Parkinson

 ref buyer Patricia Flaherty or Gary Parkinson, phone (559) 456-7110, FAX (559) 456-7831.

	

	NOTE THE following and attached ADDITIONS, DELETIONS AND/OR CHANGES TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NUMBER: 208-4715 AND INCLUDE THEM IN YOUR RESPONSE. PLEASE SIGN AND RETURN THIS ADDENDUM WITH YOUR PROPOSAL.

· Additional information is attached resulting from Bidder’s Conference held on June 23rd.  The Disclosure for Criminal History and Civil Actions must be signed and returned with your response.


	ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF ADDENDUM NUMBER one (1) TO RFP 208-4715

	COMPANY NAME: 
	

	(PRINT)

	SIGNATURE: 
	

	NAME & TITLE: 
	

	(PRINT)


All RFID hardware and software under this RFQ must be compatible with existing RFID tags and equipment. The Library places a high priority on this compatibility and functionality. 
Contract Term:  It is the County’s intent to contract with the successful bidder for a term of one (1) year with the option to renew for up to four (4) additional one (1) year periods.
Q: Will the proposed software be installed at existing as well as new locations?

A: Yes. The Library expects the proposed system would replace the RFID software currently in use. 

Q: Does the Library have any Portable Handheld Readers?

A: No. However the Library is interested in the use of a device for conducting “at the shelf” audits for purposes of inventory control. 

Q: What if the respondent does not comply with one of the specifications?

A: In the Specifications section of the RFP, respondents must indicate “Comply” or “Not Comply” with each specification. If they cannot comply, they may include information as to why they cannot comply and/or an explanation of alternative solutions they can offer. 

Q: Can respondents have samples of RFID tags encoded on the current system for compatibility testing? 

A: To assist respondents in testing the compatibility of their system with the Library’s existing tags, there are three RFID book tags are attached with this addendum. These tags have been programmed with Techlogic’s ACS software with the following barcodes: 1080144783, 1080144770 and 1080144742. 

Q: How will the Library know if the system is compatible? 

A: Prior to signing the final contract, the selected vendor is required to provide software and telephone/web support for a trial installation at one (1) Library location. This trial is to allow Library staff to perform a final evaluation of the capability of the software to perform under real-time conditions on our network environment and with existing RFID hardware and tags.

Q: Does the Library use locking cases to secure media items? 

A: The Library does not use locking cases to secure media at any of its locations with the exception of the Central branch which uses locking cases for its CD music collection. As a rule, all 8 RFID locations and the 1 barcode-only self check location, store media in unlocked cases on shelves open to the public. Exceptions to this rule are made at the branch level. For example, a very popular collection might be stored behind the desk (i.e. video games or multi-disk DVD items). The insert is displayed on the shelf and the customer brings the insert to staff in exchange for the actual item. The Library is interested in the respondents’ ability to offer locking cases that can be unlocked by the customer at the self check station without assistance from staff. Non-RFID locations store disks behind the circulation desk and staff match them up with the case upon check out. 

Q: Does the Library want respondents to provide a quotation relative only to the specific RFID locations delineated in Introduction and Background section of the RFP?

A: No. As stated in the Cost Proposal, “Unit cost shall be provided for all system components separately including hardware, software and other supplies. If a price break is available for a larger number of units, quote the price tier. 

Q: What is the configuration of the current RFID self check stations?

A: All 9 self check locations utilize dual-function self check/staff assisted circulation stations directly on the circulation desk. These stations are made up of separate components including an existing Library computer, standard monitor, receipt printer and barcode reader. An RFID antenna and touch screen (facing the customer) are then added. This components are easy to configure to allow customers to use the station independently and at the same time allow staff to easily intervene in the transaction from their side of the desk as needed to resolve any blocks on the customer’s account. Two of the 9 locations also have several “stand alone” self check stations with a single touch-screen monitor and do not allow for staff access. 

Q: What is the Library’s fee/fine limit?

A: The Library has a $10.00 fine limit. Once the customer reaches $10.01 in fees, the system blocks them from using self check until the account balance is reduced below $10 again. Additionally, the Library’s policy allows customers to check out a maximum of 25 items on their account. However, all 9 RFID locations allow 50 items out at one time. This allows the customer to check out new materials immediately after returning items without waiting for staff to check in their previous materials. 

Q: Does the Library allow customers to pay their own fees at self check?

A: Customers can only pay Library fees with cash or check at any branch with the help of a staff person. The Library does not currently have a system in place that allows customers to pay their own fees at a self check station or online. Interest in this functionality would be pursued by the Library under their participation in the San Joaquin Valley Library System (SJVLS). 

Q: How many interlibrary loans did the Library process last year?

A: In FY 08/09, the Library estimates it will have processed 690,000 interlibrary loans between members of SJVLS. With this high volume, it is imperative the RFID system is capable of reading materials that contain tags from other RFID systems in use by other SJVLS members as well as materials with only barcode identification.

Q: Is the 24/7 maintenance support listed in the Cost Proposal section realistic?

A: If the respondent does not provide 24/7 maintenance support, they may list the hours of available support they can provide including the applicable time zone. 

Q: What is the total number of Book labels being requested? If Fresno purchases 70,000 book labels annually to tag new materials at the 8 locations is it 70,000 at 8 location or 560,000 total or 70,000 spread amongst 8 locations?

A: The latter. We anticipate purchasing a total of 70,000 book labels in FY 09/10 that would be used to tag new materials across all 8 RFID locations. As budget allows us to convert additional RFID locations, this annual purchase of book labels for new materials would increase. 

Q: What portion of the standard book labels are you considering could be pre-printed with the library’s logo.

A: 100%

Q: What portion of the standard book label might require pre-encoding of the chip or will this be done onsite?

A: None at this time. All encoding will be done onsite. We need to know if you have the ability to do this if and when we do want to use this option.

Q: What portion of the standard book labels might require pre-printed sequentialized barcode printed by the label manufacturer?

A: None at this time. This is a feature we are not going to use at this time. We need to know if you have the ability to do this if and when we do want to use this option.

Q: Would the total quantity of book labels be ordered all at once or broken down over 4 quarters or as needed. 

A: In most cases, we order tags once a year.

Q: For those locations utilizing RFID, do you desire each location to have a personalized library branch name on their book label such as Auberry Branch or Bear Mountain Branch?

A: No. The image on the book label is the same for every location. 

Q: Of the audio visual RFID tags/labels you are considering, how many are CD/DVD and how many are video? 

A: See answers to the following two questions.

Q: Of the CD/DVD RFID labels, how many are multiple sets, meaning 2 or more per case?

A: Approx. 15% of the 12,600 new CDs/DVDs we estimate we’ll purchase for new materials in FY 09/10 have more than one disk. The same breakdown can be applied to opening day collections as well. Single-disk materials use a single round hub tag directly on the disk. Multi-disk CD and DVD items are tagged with a square book tag on the case/insert. The latter also applies to all audio books, video games and multimedia kits. 

	Type of Material
	Type of Tag
	Est. Needed for New Materials in FY 09/10
	% of Total

	Single Disk CD/DVD
	Round hub
	10,814
	15%

	Multi-Disk CD/DVD
	Square book
	1,900
	3%

	Print
	Square book
	54,096
	77%

	Audio Books/Kits/video games
	Square book
	3,190
	5%

	TOTAL FY 09/10
	70,000
	100%


Q: Of the videos you presently have are you using a book label on each case or something else? 

A: We use a book label to tag VHS videos. However, we are not adding any videos to the collection (either by purchase or via gifts). We are phasing this format out – particularly as we convert a new location to RFID.

Q: Are you requesting Aluminum or Copper based RFID antennas?

A: All of the tags the Library has used in the past have had copper-based antennas. We did not specify one particular material over another in the RFP. Respondents should include the type of material used in the RFID antenna in their response along with any performance and/or pricing differences if they offer both copper and aluminum.
DISCLOSURE – CRIMINAL HISTORY & CIVIL ACTIONS

In their proposal, the bidder is required to disclose if any of the following conditions apply to them, their owners, officers, corporate managers and partners (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Bidder”):

· Within the three-year period preceding the proposal, they have been convicted of, or had a civil judgment rendered against them for:

· fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction;
· violation of a federal or state antitrust statute;
· embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification, or destruction of records; or
· false statements or receipt of stolen property

· Within a three-year period preceding their proposal, they have had a public transaction (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default.

Disclosure of the above information will not automatically eliminate a Bidder  from consideration.  The information will be considered as part of the determination of whether to award the contract and any additional information or explanation that a Bidder elects to submit with the disclosed information will be considered.  If it is later determined that the Bidder failed to disclose required information, any contract awarded to such Bidder may be immediately voided and terminated for material failure to comply with the terms and conditions of the award.

Any Bidder who is awarded a contract must sign an appropriate Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, Attachment A,  Additionally, the Bidder awarded the contract must immediately advise the County in writing if, during the term of the agreement:  (1) Bidder becomes suspended, debarred, excluded or ineligible for participation in federal or state funded programs or from receiving federal funds as listed in the excluded parties list system (http://www/epls/gov); or (2) . any of the above listed conditions become applicable to Bidder.  The Bidder will indemnify, defend and hold the County harmless for any loss or damage resulting from a conviction, debarment, exclusion, ineligibility or other matter listed in the signed Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters.

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS--PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective primary participant is providing the certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of participation in this covered transaction. The prospective participant shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification set out below. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection with the department or agency's determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in this transaction. 

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when the department or agency determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency may terminate this transaction for cause or default. 

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the department or agency to which this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 

5. The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, participant, person, primary covered transaction, principal, proposal, and voluntarily excluded, as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549. You may contact the department or agency to which this proposal is being submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations.
6. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings. 

CERTIFICATION

(1) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it, its owners, officers, corporate managers and partners: 
(a)
Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded by any Federal department or agency;

(b) 
Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

(c)
Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default. 

(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal. 
	Signature:
	
	
	Date:
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	(Printed Name & Title)
	
	
	(Name of Agency or Company)
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